

Minutes of the Council (Council decisions shown in bold text)

22 February 2018

-: Present :-

Chairwoman of the Council (Councillor Brooks) (In the Chair) Vice-Chairman of the Council (Councillor Doggett)

The Elected Mayor of Torbay (Mayor Oliver)

Councillors Amil, Bent, Carter, Darling (M), Darling (S), Ellery, Excell, Haddock, Hill, Kingscote, Lewis (B), Lewis (C), Long, Manning, Mills, Morey, O'Dwyer, Parrott, Pentney, Robson, Sanders, Stockman, Stubley, Sykes, Thomas (D), Thomas (J), Tolchard, Tyerman and Winfield

173 Opening of meeting

The meeting was opened with a prayer.

174 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barnby, Bye, King, Morris and Stocks. Councillor Sanders left before the end of the meeting.

175 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 1 February 2018 and the adjourned meeting of the Council held on 8 February 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairwoman.

176 Declarations of interests

There were no interests declared.

177 Communications

There were no communications reported at the meeting.

178 Public question time - Neighbourhood Plans

In accordance with Standing Order A24, the Council heard from Mr Watts, on behalf of the Neighbourhood Forums, who had submitted a statement and question in relation to the Council's involvement in the three neighbourhood plans for Torbay.

The Deputy Mayor and Executive Lead for Planning responded to the statement and question that had been put forward, and advised that a written response would be provided in respect of the supplementary question asked by Mr Watts.

179 Members' questions

Members received a paper detailing questions, as set out at Appendix 1 to these Minutes, notice of which had been given in accordance with Standing Order A13. The paper also contained the answers to the questions which had been prepared by Elected Mayor Oliver and Councillors Excell and Parrott.

Supplementary questions were put and answered by Elected Mayor Oliver and Councillor Parrott arising from their responses to the questions in respect of questions 2 and 5.

180 Notice of Motion - Plastic Free Torbay

Members considered a motion in relation to the Council's leadership for a plastic free Torbay, notice of which was given in accordance with Standing Order A14. The Chairwoman advised that a revised motion had been circulated on 21 February 2018 amending the original Notice of Motion to ensure factual accuracy.

Councillor Long proposed and Councillor Carter seconded the motion as set out below:

Torbay is an important UNESCO accredited Global Geopark. The sea has shaped our communities and history and is a vital contributor to our economy and premier tourism offer.

This Council notes that in 2016 the Ellen MacArthur Foundation estimated that by weight, there could be more plastic in our oceans than fish as soon as 2050. Columbia University has estimated that plastic can last for up to 600 years in our environment, often finding its way into marine life thus affecting the food chain, and the water we eventually drink.

Torbay Council also congratulates the Herald Express newspaper and 'Devon Live' for launching a campaign with 'Surfers Against Sewage' (SAS) to encourage 125 communities to become plastic free by 2020.

Following the public outcry on this issue after the BBC 'Blue Planet II' programme, this Council resolves to provide leadership on this issue by:

 Instigating a council-led Plastic Free Torbay Task Force that involves all sections of the local community to be in place by July 2018. This task force will create an action plan that works towards moving away from the unnecessary single use plastics in Torbay and campaign to reduce and discourage single use plastics from retail premises;

- Start phasing out the use of unnecessary 'single use plastic' products such as bottles, cups, cutlery and drinking straws in all Council buildings and at all Council events by July 2020;
- 3) Installing a free drinking water fountain in Paignton Library;
- Increasing the amount of plastic that can be recycled through doorstep recycling and instigating a strategy to reduce the amount of litter on Torbay's streets;
- 5) Working with local businesses and the Tourism Sector to participate in this initiative; and
- 6) Sign up to the Herald Express and SAS campaign for Torbay to become a Plastic Free community by 2020.

In accordance with Standing Order A14.3(a), the motion stood referred to the Elected Mayor.

The Elected Mayor outlined the action already being taken by the Council to address the issue and his record of decision is attached to these Minutes.

181 Notice of Motion - Paignton Townscape

Members considered a motion in relation to investment in Paignton Town Centre and proposals for townscape improvement notice of which was given in accordance with Standing Order A14. In accordance with Standing Order A14.3(b) the motion was dealt with by this meeting.

Councillor Lewis (B) and Councillor Tyerman seconded the motion, which was agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

that Council note the overwhelming need for investment in Paignton Town Centre, and that the Town Centre Regeneration Board have been developing townscape improvement proposals in relation to the Station Square area of Paignton, which would cost £1.172 million to implement. Prudential borrowing would be required to fund the scheme which is to be considered as part of the £25 million approved by Council for Town Centre Regeneration which had anticipated that repayments for this scheme would come from surplus income from other Town Centre Regeneration Schemes.

That Council instructs Officers to implement those proposals and borrow £1.172m from PWLB, noting that repayments would not need to be made until the financial year 2019/20, and therefore need to be included within the budget for 2019/20 and beyond unless and until surplus income from other Town Centre Regeneration schemes is able to cover repayments.

182 Annual Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust and Better Care Fund

The Council received the submitted report on the Annual Strategic Agreement (ASA) 2018 to 2020 setting out the way in which Torbay Council and South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) commission services from the Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust (the Trust). It was noted the ASA was designed to maximise choice and independence for those requiring adult and social care support. The submitted report also included performance commitments along with the approach to the (Improved) Better Care Fund. The Adult Services and Public Health Monitoring Group had considered the ASA and were supportive of its approach.

Councillor Parrott proposed and Councillor Long seconded a motion, which was agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

the Annual Strategic Agreement between Torbay Council, South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group and Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report be approved.

183 Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement including Gender Pay Gap Report and Review of Pensions Discretions

The Council considered the submitted report setting out the Council's Annual Pay Policy Statement, as required under Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011. It was noted that the Pay Policy Statement drew together the Council's overarching policies on pay and conditions which would be published on the Council's website. The report also set out the annual review of pensions discretions as required by the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. In addition, the report set out details of the Council's gender pay gap data as required by the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations.

Elected Mayor Oliver proposed and Councillor Mills seconded a motion, which was agreed by the Council as set out below:

- (i) that the Torbay Council Annual Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 as set out in Appendix 2 to the submitted report be approved for publication;
- (ii) that the Torbay Council Gender Pay Gap Report, contained as Appendix 2 within the above Annual Pay Policy Statement 2018/19 be approved for publication; and
- (iii) that the Employers Pensions Discretion set out in Appendix 3 to the submitted report be approved.

184 Adopt South West Regional Adoption Agency: Torbay Participation

The Council considered the submitted report on proposals for the Council to participate within a Regional Adoption Agency (RAA). The proposals resulted from the publication of the Department for Education's guidance on Regionalising Adoption which asked all adoption agencies in England to consider how they might work more closely together on a regional basis. It was noted the existing collaborative arrangements of Adopt South West were proposed to be developed into a Regional Adoption Agency. This would combine current adoption resources for Devon County Council, Somerset County Council, Plymouth City Council and Torbay Council.

Councillor Parrott proposed and Councillor Darling (S) seconded a motion, which was agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

that the South West Regional Adoption Agency Business Case attached at Exempt Appendix 1 to the submitted report be approved and that the Director of Children's Services, in consultation with the Executive Lead for Adults and Children's Services, be given delegated authority to progress towards implementation by October 2018, including the development of a robust inter-agency agreement for adoption services in Torbay.

185 Recommendations of Investment Committee - Review of Investment Fund Strategy

The Council received the recommendations of the Elected Mayor and Investment Committee on a revision of the Investment Fund Strategy to ensure it was a high level strategy, included regeneration proposals and introduced an operational policy (as set out in the submitted report). It was noted the revised Strategy enabled income generating investment and local regeneration investments in Torbay to be made within the Investment and Regeneration Fund.

Elected Mayor Oliver proposed and Councillor Robson seconded a motion, which was agreed (unanimously) by the Council as set out below:

- (i) that the Council be recommended to approve the high level Investment and Regeneration Fund Strategy set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report;
- (ii) that the Director of Corporate Services and Operations, in consultation with the Elected Mayor, Head of Finance and Chairman of the Investment Committee, be given delegated authority to approve the Investment and Regeneration Fund Strategy Operational Policy (this document will not form part of the Council's Policy Framework as it is an operational policy); and
- (iii) that Council be recommended that the Investment Committee be renamed to Investment and Regeneration Committee.

186 Order of Business

At this juncture and in accordance with Standing Order A7.2 in relation to Council meetings, the Chairwoman varied the order of business to enable agenda Item 13 (Council Tax 2018/2019) to be considered at end of the meeting.

187 Exclusion of the Press and Public

Councillor Mills proposed and Councillor Ellery seconded the motion, which was agreed by the Council (unanimously), as set out below:

that the press and public be excluded from the meeting prior to consideration of items 15 and 16 on the agenda on the grounds that exempt information (as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) is likely to be disclosed.

Prior to consideration of the items in Minutes 188 and 189 the press and public were formally excluded from the meeting.

188 Financial contribution to the acquisition of site for new Primary School in Paignton

Members considered the submitted exempt report in respect of the Council's statutory requirement to provide sufficient school places and the financial contributions required to the Education and Skills Funding Agency for the acquisition of a site for a new primary school in Paignton.

The decision of the Council is restricted due to exempt information contained within the decision.

189 Investment Committee Recommendation - Investment Opportunity

The Council considered the recommendations of the Investment Committee on two investment opportunities. Members received details of the proposals as set out in the exempt reports circulated prior to the meeting.

The decisions of the Council are restricted due to exempt information contained within the decisions.

190 Duration of Meeting

At this juncture, the Monitoring Officer reported that the meeting had exceeded four hours in duration and in accordance with Standing Order A11.2, the Chief Executive had indicated that item 13 (Council Tax 2018/2019) must be transacted at the meeting. Therefore, the meeting continued.

191 Council Tax 2018/2019

The Council received the submitted report in relation to the setting of Council Tax for 2018/19.

In accordance with legislation, the Chairman advised recorded votes would be taken on the motion.

Elected Mayor Oliver proposed and Councillor Mills seconded a motion, which was agreed (unanimously and by recorded vote) as set out below:

- (i) that it be noted in December 2017 the Council calculated the Council Tax Base for 2018/19:
 - a) for the whole Council area as 44,865.89, [Item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")]; and
 - b) for dwellings in the Brixham Town Council area as 6,004.42 to which a Parish precept relates;
- (ii) that it be noted the Police and Crime Commissioner for Devon and Cornwall and the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the Council's area as indicated in the table in (v) below;

That the Council is recommended to approve:

- (iii) the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 2018/19 (excluding Brixham Town Council) of £65,477,400;
- (iv) that the following amounts be calculated for the year 2018/19 in accordance with Chapter Three of the Act:
 - £289,723,252 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act taking into account the precept issued to it by Brixham Town Council;
 - b) (£223,965,000) being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act;
 - c) £65,758,252 being the amount by which the aggregate at (iv) a) above exceeds the aggregate at (iv) b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax Requirement for the year (item R in the formula in Section 31B of the Act);

- d) £1,465.66 being the amount at (iv) c) above (Item R), all divided by Item T ((i) a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year (including Parish precepts);
- e) £280,852 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Brixham Town Council) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act; and
- f) £1,459.40 being the amount at (iv) d) above less the result given by dividing the amount at (iv) e) above by Item T (i) a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no Parish precept relates;
- (v) that the Council, in accordance with Chapter Three of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2018/19 for each part of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings:

	Valuation Band							
	Α	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н
Ratio of each band to Band D	6/9	7/9	8/9	9/9	11/9	13/9	15/9	18/9
	£	£	£	£	£	£	£	£
Torbay Council – excluding Adult Social Care	902.36	1,052.75	1,203.14	1,353.54	1,654.33	1,955.11	2,255.90	2,707.08
Torbay Council – Adult Social Care "precept" since 2016/17	70.57	82.34	94.10	105.86	129.38	152.91	176.43	211.72
Torbay Council	972.93	1,135.09	1,297.24	1,459.40	1,783.71	2,108.02	2,432.33	2,918.80
Police and Crime Commission- er	125.52	146.44	167.36	188.28	230.12	271.96	313.80	376.56
Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority	56.01	65.34	74.68	84.01	102.68	121.35	140.02	168.02

Aggregate of Council Tax Require- ments ex. Town Council	1,154.46	1,346.87	1,539.28	1,731.69	2,116.51	2,501.33	2,886.15	3,463.38
Brixham Town Council	31.18	36.38	41.57	46.77	57.16	67.56	77.95	93.54
Aggregate of Council Tax Require- ments including Brixham Town Council	1,185.64	1,383.25	1,580.85	1,778.46	2,173.67	2,568.89	2,964.10	3,556.92

(vi) that the Council's basic amount of Council Tax for 2018/19 is not excessive in accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB Local Government Finance Act 1992. (as set out in paragraph 5.9 of the submitted report).

A recorded vote was taken on the motion. The voting was taken by roll call as follows: For: Elected Mayor Oliver, Councillors Amil, Bent, Brooks, Carter, Darling (M), Darling (S), Doggett, Ellery, Excell, Haddock, Hill, Kingscote, Lewis (B), Lewis (C), Long, Manning, Mills, Morey, O'Dwyer, Parrott, Pentney, Robson, Stockman, Stubley, Sykes, Thomas (D), Thomas (J), Tolchard, Tyerman and Winfield (31); and Absent: Councillors Barnby, Bye, King, Morris, Sanders and Stocks (6).

Chairwoman



Questions Under Standing Order A13

A member may only submit three questions for consideration at each Council Meeting. Each member will present their first question in turn, when all the first questions have been dealt with the second and third questions may be asked in turn. The time for member's questions will be limited to a total of 30 minutes.

Question (1) by
Councillor Darling
(M) to the
Executive Lead for
Community
Services
(Councillor Excell)

Please find below an extract from a letter I have received from Robert Williams, Commercial Director at Stagecoach, dated 24th January, 2018.

"There are only a very small number of locations in the UK where such equipment is wide spread, London, Reading and Bristol spring to mind, and these are typically locations where the local authority have funded the provision of the necessary technology. Torbay Council have in the past expressed an interest in funding such equipment on our route 12 fleet given it's importance to the area, so we did approach them to see if they were still interested prior to taking delivery of the vehicles, but they chose not to proceed. The fares our passengers pay are our only means of covering our running costs, and without local authority funding we would struggle to say that we would gain enough patronage/income by having audio announcements to avoid having to increase prices."

In light of the statement above, can you please explain what process Torbay Council went through in reaching the decision not to support the provision of audible stop announcements on the number 12 bus route?

Councillor Excell

On vehicle audible and visual stop announcements were considered as part of a bid to Government for funding around 2014/15. A quote was obtained from Stagecoach at the time which demonstrated that it would not cost an insignificant amount. At that time it was also not known how long the vehicles would continue to operate on the route. A successful funding bid for a real time information system was submitted instead.

At the time of the welcomed recent investment by Stagecoach in the Route 12 fleet, the Authority was approached by Stagecoach and asked if we still wanted to fund that installation, but the funding was not available immediately. It should be noted that Stagecoach did not feel that the benefits were sufficient to justify their investment. Bids are compiled with the most chance of success, using the formal and informal guidance, available match funding, deliverability and a number of other factors to support a business case.

External funding opportunities, particularly those supporting improved accessibility, will always be considered and the Authority will also continue to work closely with the bus operators to look for long term solutions.

Question (2) by
Councillor Darling
(S) to the Elected
Mayor and
Executive Lead for
Assets, Finance,
Governance and
Corporate
Services,
Economic

In your opinion, what are the risks and opportunities of Brexit on Torbay's economy, workforce and skills of our residents and what impacts do you expect in the future?

Regeneration and Transformation (Elected Mayor Oliver)	
Elected Mayor Oliver	The impact of exiting the EU on local businesses and on the local economy is, like the national picture, is now emerging.
	What we can set out is that Torbay is performing well for new foreign investment with several of our existing local foreign owned businesses reinvesting in Torbay.
	This council when approving the economic strategy in October of last year recognised that there is a need to continue to support local businesses in developing their international trade potential. For this reason a pilot programme working with the department of international trade team locally is currently being developed.
Question (3) by Councillor Carter to the Elected Mayor and Executive Lead for Assets, Finance, Governance and Corporate Services, Economic Regeneration and Transformation (Elected Mayor Oliver)	What are your priorities for local growth funding, particularly for the UK Shared Prosperity Fund domestic successor regime, and which other sources of funding are particularly important to Torbay?
Elected Mayor Oliver	The Council's priorities for local growth funding are largely driven by the Council's policy framework and including the economic strategy approved in October 2017. That strategy set out that this Council would pursue appropriate and relevant funding opportunities that supported delivery of the outcomes and activities set out in that strategy.
	Government has begun informally consulting on the UK Shared Prosperity Fund and Torbay will use that process to seek to influence how the Fund will be developed. It is of the upmost importance that our regional and national partners and government recognise that Torbay like other coastal areas has immense opportunity.
	We are making the case to government that there needs to be appropriate co-investment of national funds, alongside the councils investment, to sustain the momentum that we are beginning to see locally and bring forward jobs homes and other benefits for our community.

Second Round

Question (4) by	What are your priorities for local government when reviewing EU
Councillor Carter	legislation?
to the Elected	
Mayor and	
Executive Lead for	
Assets, Finance,	
Governance and	
Corporate	

Services, Economic Regeneration and Transformation (Elected Mayor Oliver)	
Elected Mayor Oliver	I am a strong supporter of Brexit and look forward to seeing what benefits will flow from EU regulations.
	The Local Government Association (LGA), I understand have a seat on the negotiating body and represent local government at this very high level. Nationally we should all be working together to gain the maximum support for local government in this country, including any potential national agreements with the 27 nations that want a trade agreement with the UK.
Question (5) by Councillor Darling (S) to the Executive Lead for Adults and Children (Councillor Parrott)	I understand that Torbay has only been offered observer status at the interviews for the Joint Head of Plymouth and Torbay Children Services, with no voting rights. Can you confirm the selection criteria and process for the appointment of the Joint Head of Plymouth and Torbay Children Services?
Councillor Parrott	Thank you for your question Cllr Darling.
	I recently met with the Leader of Plymouth City Council, their Chief Executive together with our Chief Executive and Cllr Tyerman, on behalf of the Children's Services Monitoring Group. There was unanimous agreement that Torbay must play a meaningful part within the recruitment process for the joint DCS as part of our developing partnership. On that basis I will be sitting on the Members appointment panel and can assure you I will be participating fully in that process.
	I should add that Plymouth have asked one of the Headteachers to participate in the stakeholders panel that will contribute to the recruitment process. The process in Plymouth will be followed by an employment committee in Torbay which is scheduled for early in March. The DfE Commissioner will also be actively involved throughout, as Torbay remains under a statutory direction and unable to appoint a DCS without his approval.
	In terms of the selection criteria to be applied, these will be informed by the Statutory Guidance for the DCS and Lead Members which sets out in detail the nature of the role. The appointee will be the DCS for Plymouth and the DCS for Torbay and, as such, both parties, and the Commissioner, will need to be assured that any appointee is capable of delivering the role effectively.



Minute Item 180

Record of Decision

Notice of Motion - Plastic Free Torbay

Decision Taker

Elected Mayor on 22 February 2018

Decision

That the motion be supported in principle, however, a number of actions are already being taken by the Council to support a plastic free Torbay as follows:

- 1. Instigating a council-led Plastic Free Torbay Task Force that involves all sections of the local community to be in place by July 2018. This task force will create an action plan that works towards moving away from the unnecessary single use plastics in Torbay and campaign to reduce and discourage single use plastics from retail premises;
- 2. Start phasing out the use of unnecessary 'single use plastic' products such as bottles, cups, cutlery and drinking straws in all Council buildings and at all Council events by July 2020
- 5. Working with local businesses and the Tourism Sector to participate in this initiative;

Actions:

Torbay Council is leading the South West Marine Plastics Initiative, in conjunction with Groundwork Trust. The project will be applying for substantial funding from the Big Lottery Fund to cover initiatives in the South Devon area (Plymouth CC, South Hams DC, Torbay Council (waste team, beaches and harbours) Teignbridge DC Exeter CC, Devon CC and East Devon DC), working with various partners including Torbay Cleaner Coasts Initiative, Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust, Beach Care (part funded by Tidy Britain), Fathoms Free, South Devon AONB, The National Trust, MVV and Groundwork South who are all committed to dealing with plastic waste washed up on our beaches and in our seas,.

The project will focus on the collection, recycling and reuse of marine plastics through the collection of plastic waste from beaches and seas during organised community beach cleans/litter picks, alongside the fishing industry being enabled to recycle their unwanted nets, along with any other plastic collected in the course of their work.

The plastic will be collected separately and taken to Exeter CC's Material Reclamation Facility, where it will be sorted into different polymers. This will then be delivered to a company in Germany who will turn the plastic into pellets. The pellets will then be made into kayaks and hopefully surfboards by a company in Somerset.

Kayaks will then be distributed to beach clean groups to enable them to continue to collect waste and plastic from the sea.

Funding will also be requested for the purchase of items to replace single use plastics in all council and partner's buildings.- glasses, cutlery etc.

This project has the potential to be a flagship scheme for the whole of the UK, if the trial is successful.

Torbay Council is also signed up to the Refill Devon scheme, this is a practical tap water campaign that aims to make refilling your water bottle as easy, convenient and cheap as possible by introducing refill points on every street.

Participating cafes, bars, restaurants, banks, galleries, museums and other businesses display a round, blue sticker in their window, inviting thirsty passers-by to come on in and fill up their bottle – for free.

The aim is to reduce the amount of plastic bottles ending up in our oceans, whilst keeping residents and visitors healthy, hydrated and saving money at the same time.

Refill Devon launched last year with the support of Beach Care and City Seas (see https://www.recycledevon.org/welcome-to-refill-devon and https://www.torbay.gov.uk/ for more information).

3. Installing a free drinking water fountain in Paignton Library;

Action:

Whilst waiting for the drinking water fountain to be installed, Paignton Library could offer the Refill Devon scheme.

4. Increasing the amount of plastic that can be recycled through doorstep recycling and instigating a strategy to reduce the amount of litter on Torbay's streets;

Actions:

TOR2 already collect a comprehensive range of plastics at the kerbside including drinks bottles, shampoo, milk and detergent bottles, plastic pots like yoghurt pots, plastic tubs like margarine and ice cream tubs and plastic trays that fruit and meat are sold in.

Torbay Council does not take black plastic, film or hard plastic as this cannot easily be recycled and can contaminate plastic loads resulting in rejection of whole loads of otherwise recyclable plastic.

The Council will continue to look for new markets that can accept all these more difficult plastics, but with the Chinese market restrictions from January this year plastic recycling is becoming increasingly difficult.

6. Sign up to the Herald Express and SAS campaign for Torbay to become a Plastic Free community by 2020.

Action:

The Elected Mayor supports working with the Herald Express and SAS on board with our marine plastics initiative.

Reason for the Decision

To respond to the motion.

Implementation

This decision will come into force and may be implemented on Wednesday, 7 March 2018 unless the call-in procedure is triggered (as set out in Standing Orders in relation to Overview and Scrutiny).

Information

At the Council meeting held on 22 February 2018, the Elected Mayor considered a motion on a plastic free Torbay notice of which was given in accordance with Standing Order A14 by Councillors Long and Carter as set out below:

Torbay is an important UNESCO accredited Global Geopark. The sea has shaped our communities and history and is a vital contributor to our economy and premier tourism offer.

This Council notes that in 2016 the Ellen MacArthur Foundation estimated that by weight, there could be more plastic in our oceans than fish as soon as 2050. Columbia University has estimated that plastic can last for up to 600 years in our environment, often finding its way into marine life thus affecting the food chain, and the water we eventually drink.

Torbay Council also congratulates the Herald Express newspaper and 'Devon Live' for launching a campaign with 'Surfers Against Sewage' (SAS) to encourage 125 communities to become plastic free by 2020.

Following the public outcry on this issue after the BBC 'Blue Planet II' programme, this Council resolves to provide leadership on this issue by:

- Instigating a council-led Plastic Free Torbay Task Force that involves all sections
 of the local community to be in place by July 2018. This task force will create an
 action plan that works towards moving away from the unnecessary single use
 plastics in Torbay and campaign to reduce and discourage single use plastics
 from retail premises;
- Start phasing out the use of unnecessary 'single use plastic' products such as bottles, cups, cutlery and drinking straws in all Council buildings and at all Council events by July 2020;
- 3) Installing a free drinking water fountain in Paignton Library;
- 4) Increasing the amount of plastic that can be recycled through doorstep recycling and instigating a strategy to reduce the amount of litter on Torbay's streets;
- 5) Working with local businesses and the Tourism Sector to participate in this initiative; and
- 6) Sign up to the Herald Express and SAS campaign for Torbay to become a Plastic

Free community by 2020.

In accordance with Standing Order A14.3(a), the motion stood	d referred to the Elected Mayor.				
The Elected Mayor responded to the motion at the meeting and his decision is set out above.					
Alternative Options considered and rejected at the time of the decision					
None					
Is this a Key Decision?					
No					
Does the call-in procedure apply?					
Yes					
Declarations of interest (including details of any relevant dispensations issued by the Standards Committee)					
None					
Published					
27 February 2018					
Signed: Da The Elected Mayor of Torbay	te: 27 February 2018				